
 
 
Note:  Due to COVID-19 issues, City Hall will not be open to the public.  Remote participation is being implemented using Zoom 
meeting software.  Necessary login information is provided below the agenda.  To participate via video, it is necessary to 
download the ZOOM app.  It is not necessary to have the app to call in and participate without video. 

 
CITY OF SALEM 

6:00 PM REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
  May 4, 2020 – 6:00 PM 

 
I. Call to Order 

II. Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance 
III. Presentation of Petitions/Public Comments 
IV. Mayor’s Report and Presentations 

 
V. City Council Action 

1. Consent Agenda 
a. City Council Minutes – 4/20/2020 

 
2. First reading – Ordinance against the feeding of wildlife within the City Limits 
3. Bid Award – Oil and Chip 
4. 4. DOEM – Emergency Signal Repair 

 
VI. City Manager Report 

VII. City Attorney Report 
VIII. Finance Director Report 

IX. City Council Members Report 
     X. Executive Session 
 1.  5 ILCS 120/2(c)(1) - Personnel 
 
    XI.          Motion to Adjourn 
 

 Rex A. Barbee  
City Manager 
RAB 
 

Quote of the day – 

Concentrate all your thoughts upon the work at hand.  The sun’s rays to not burn until brought to a focus. 

Alexander Graham Bell 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://zoom.us/j/91189486032 
 
Meeting ID:  853 4834 6625 
One tap mobile 
+13126266799, 91189486032# US (Chicago) 
+16465588656, 91189486032# US (New York)                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

 
 

 
 
 

MINUTES 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, MAY 4, 2020 – 6:00 PM  

(Held remotely using Zoom meeting software) 
 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 The regular May 4, 2020 meeting of the City Council was convened at 6:00 pm  via video conferencing, 

and was called to order by Mayor Sue Morgan. 
 
 Council members present via Zoom: 
 Councilman Jim Koehler 
 Councilman Nic Farley 
 Councilman Craig Morton  

Councilman Jacob Hockett 
 Mayor Sue Morgan 
 

https://zoom.us/j/91189486032


 Council members absent:  None. 
  

Others present: 
 City Manager Rex Barbee    City Clerk Bev Quinn 

Public Works Director John Pruden                 Chief of Police Sean Reynolds    
Economic Dev. Director Tabitha Meador  Finance Director Keli Barrow   
Asst. Public Works Dir. Annette Brushwitz  Chamber Director Jessickya Coleman Nix 
Brock Waggoner     DOEM Director Terry Mulvany 
Members of the Media and Public 
 

II. PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Opening prayer was offered by Councilman Koehler, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
III.  PRESENTATION OF PETITIONS/PUBLIC COMMENTS   
  Brock Waggoner indicated he had submitted a letter to Mayor Morgan regarding the Governor’s Stay at 

Home Order.  Mayor Morgan indicated it had been her intention to read his letter into the minutes, as it 
was not clear that he wanted this to be an agenda item.  Mayor Morgan apologized for the 
misunderstanding.  Mr. Waggoner went through his letter, which is shown in its entirety below: 

 

 

 
 



      (Letter continues on  next page) 

 
Mr. Waggoner also presented the following: 
 
 

 
 
 



 
 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 
 
 

  Mr. Waggoner indicated that there is overreaction to the pandemic, and he is asking that City Council 
take action tonight that they are “taking a stand and will not enforce the Governor’s mandates”. 

 
  Councilman Farley responded that Council has no authority to do this, and that Rep. Bailey has 

requested that the decision on his petition be vacated.  Farley added that this has not been settled in 
court.  Mayor Morgan thanked Mr. Waggoner for his presentation, and added no action will be taken 
tonight.  Mr. Waggoner responded that a delay means two more weeks that businesses will be forced 
to be closed.  Mayor Morgan thanked Mr. Waggoner again, and added there will be no action taken 
during tonight’s meeting. 
 

IV. MAYOR’S REPORT AND PRESENTATIONS  
Mayor Morgan congratulated Councilman Farley on the accolade he received from Kaskaskia College 
regarding his efforts to help students. 

 
 V.  COUNCIL ACTION 
  1. Consent Agenda 
   a.  City Council Minutes –4/20/20 

        Motion was made by Councilman Koehler and seconded by Councilman Farley to approve the 
minutes of 4/20/2020 as presented.  Roll call vote:  AYES:  Councilman Farley, Councilman 
Morton, Councilman Hockett, Councilman Koehler, Mayor Morgan.  NAYS:  None.  Motion 
carried. 

 
  2.  First Reading – Ordinance against the feeding of wildlife within the City Limits 

City Manager Barbee indicated the City has received complaints about residents feeding deer, 
which is drawing nuisance animals into their neighborhoods.  Barbee added that feeding deer is 



against State law, and this ordinance will just enable the City to enforce it better.  City Manager 
Barbee added that this is a first reading, and because the meeting is being held via Zoom, he wants 
to provide the community the opportunity to express their opinions before final action is taken.  
Discussion ensued regarding what the fine would be.  City Clerk Quinn indicated she would put the 
regular nuisance fine language into the ordinance before it comes back for a second reading. 

    
   3. Bid Award – Oil and Chip 
    Public Works Director John Pruden indicated this is the annual bid for oil and chip for the MFT 

program.  The low bids received were: 
 
    Seal Coat:      Mike A. Maedge Trucking, Inc., Highland, IL - $422.00/ton - $97,060.00 
    Pea Gravel:    Charles H. Carter & Son, Inc., Fairfield, IL - $13.70/ton - $27,400.00 
 
    Mr. Pruden indicated these are budgeted items and he recommends approval of the low bids as 

presented.  Motion was made by Councilman Farley and seconded by Councilman Koehler to 
approve the bid awards to the low bidders, as outlined above.  Roll call vote:  AYES:  Councilman 
Morton, Councilman Hockett, Councilman Koehler, Councilman Farley, Mayor Morgan.  NAYS:  
None.  Motion carried. 

   
  4. DOEM – Emergency Signal Repair 
    DOEM Director Terry Mulvany indicted the emergency signal on E. Lake St. needs to be replaced, 

as it is very old.  The top was put on in 1982, and the lower section was replaced after the April 19, 
1996 tornado, through a federal grant.  The signal east of East Lawn Cemetery is the one needing 
repairs.  The sirens behind Taco Bell, at the tennis courts, and the Fire Department are all working.   
City Manager Barbee indicated tonight’s discussion is primarily regarding repairs to the signal by 
the cemetery, which were estimated at $14,129.32. Replacement of the emergency signal at the 
fairgrounds would cost $31,000, and DOEM is looking for grant funds to help with that.  Barbee 
added that the $14,129.32 repair is unbudgeted. 

 
    Councilman Farley asked how long it would take to have the signal repaired, once approved.  City 

Manager Barbee indicated 10-12 weeks.  Farley indicated he is cautious on making any large 
expenditures , as we don’t know how our budget will be affected by COVID-19.  Councilman 
Morton asked how long this signal has been out of order.  Mr. Mulvany responded that it has had 
problems off and on for several years.  Morton asked what the County is doing.   Mulvany 
responded that they are doing much like the City, repairing or replacing what they can, when they 
can.  Councilman Koehler asked if the sirens are really necessary, with everyone having cell 
phones.  Mr. Mulvany responded that the sirens are outdoor warning devices that are intended to 
let people who are outdoors know they need to go indoors.  Mulvany added that we do have the 
Nixle program, which notifies thousands of people by cell phone in an emergency.  Mulvany added 
that there are still people who depend on the outdoor warning signals.  Councilman Morton asked 
if having outdoor warning signals is a law.  Mulvany responded that it is a courtesy.  Councilman 
Hockett questioned if it is feasible to throw money at old technology.  Mayor Morgan asked how 
many of the other signals need repairs.   Councilman Koehler asked if there is more modern 
technology the City should be looking at.  Councilman Farley indicated the repair proposal before 
us  is good for 90 days, and suggested this item be tabled until sometime in the future.  Council 
agreed by consensus.  City Manager Barbee indicated he would work with Mr. Mulvany  and 
provide more information before this is brought back. 

   
VI.    CITY MANAGER REPORT 

 City Manager Barbee indicated the following: 
• Kudos to Nic Farley, for his recognition by Kaskaskia College for helping a student. 
• The YMCA/Rec Department has had to deal with a lot of cancellations and postponements, 

with Family Day being the most recent.  Barbee added that they are hoping it can be 
rescheduled.  Councilman Farley suggested it could become part of the July 4th celebration.  
Councilman Koehler added that he really hopes this will be rescheduled. 

• The Gas Department recently did a high pressure check of the gas line, and the boiler at City 
Hall had an issue.  Barbee added that at some point, we are going to have to update and 
replace the boiler system to a forced air heating system.  Councilman Koehler responded that 
that needs to be done before the boiler blows. 

 
VII. CITY ATTORNEY REPORT -  (Not present.) 
 

VIII. FINANCE DIRECTOR REPORT  
 Finance Director Barrow indicated she will be closing the month and year-end  soon, and she will 

distribute those reports as soon as she can. 
 
IX. CITY COUNCIL REPORT 
  Councilman Koehler reiterated that he does want to see Family Day in the Park rescheduled.  Koehler 

also indicated that JK Trotter is doing a good job on Whittaker Street. 
 



   
 
XII. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
  1.  5 ILCS 120/2(c)(1) - Personnel 
  Motion was made by Councilman Farley and seconded by Councilman Hockett at 6:45 pm to enter into 

Executive Session for the purpose of discussing Personnel.  Roll call vote:  AYES:  Councilman Koehler, 
Councilman Farley, Councilman Morton, Councilman Hockett, Mayor Morgan.  NAYS;  None.  Motion 
carried.   

 
  (Councilman Farley moved the Mayor, Council, City Manager, City Clerk, and Chief of Police into a 

breakout session.) 
 
  Return to open session at 7:45 pm. 
 
 XII. ADJOURNMENT 
      As there was no further business to discuss, motion was made by Councilman Morton and seconded by 

Councilman Hockett to adjourn the meeting at 7:45 pm.  Roll call vote:  AYES:  Councilman Hockett, 
Councilman Koehler, Councilman Farley, Councilman Morton, Mayor Morgan.  NAYS:  None.  Motion 
carried. 

 
 
 
Bev Quinn, CMC 
City Clerk 

Approved:  ________________________ 


	VI. City Manager Report

